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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Good afternoon.

          3  The purpose for this joint hearing today is to hear

          4  testimonies and discuss Resolution 184, presented by

          5  my good friend, and colleague, the Chairman of the

          6  Select Committee on Civil Rights, the honorable

          7  Hiram Monserrate.

          8                 I would like to thank and

          9  congratulate him on the leadership he has shown on

         10  this important and humane issue. I am in full

         11  support of Resolution 184, calling upon the

         12  President of the United States and the Attorney

         13  General to grant Temporary Protected Status to the

         14  victims of violence in Colombia who are now living

         15  in the United States.

         16                 As we all know, Temporary Protected

         17  Status is not an amnesty, but a temporary relief for

         18  honorable tax-paying people who are in this great

         19  nation but cannot return to their country at the

         20  present time. Provisions exist in the Immigration

         21  Nationality Act to offer temporary relief from

         22  removal under certain circumstances.

         23                 Some of the circumstances defined in

         24  the federal laws include, civil unrest, violence or

         25  natural disasters. I believe that nationals from
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          2  Colombia qualify under these federal laws. With the

          3  violence currently experienced in Colombia, we

          4  should be concerned about the safety of nationals

          5  from Colombia living in this country should they be

          6  forced to return to their country.

          7                 It would be wrong and immoral to

          8  return these people to a place of unrest and

          9  violence.

         10                 The United States currently provides

         11  some type of blanket relief from deportation or

         12  forced departure to nationals from ten countries

         13  which include Angola, Barundi, El Salvador,

         14  Honduras, Liberia, Monstserrat, Nicaragua, Sierra

         15  Leone, Somalia, and the Sudan. All but Liberians who

         16  have Deferred Enforced Department have Temporary

         17  Protected Status.

         18                 I believe that the people of Colombia

         19  should be afforded this same opportunity.

         20                 It would be inconsistent with our

         21  current policy if this country were to require the

         22  return of these Colombians to their native land

         23  under these circumstances.

         24                 The deportation of the Colombians

         25  would be without compassion, and contrary to our
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          2  past policies, which have allowed refugees from

          3  Hungary, Vietnam, Ireland, and the Soviet Union to

          4  seek refuge and safety in this country.

          5                 After the horrible terrorist attacks

          6  on our nation, the President spoke of a New World

          7  order that included international cooperation to

          8  fight terrorism and to support the fundamental

          9  rights of all citizens worldwide. I believe that he

         10  could best demonstrate his commitment to a new

         11  humane world order by granting our Colombian

         12  neighbors temporary protected status until we can be

         13  assured that they will not be forced into a life

         14  without food, safety or hope.

         15                 According to the Year 2000 data from

         16  the Census Bureau, today we have about 77,154

         17  nationals of Colombia living in New York City alone,

         18  and I am sure that this number is very much on the

         19  conservative side.

         20                 They work long and hard in this City

         21  to improve their lives and those of their families.

         22  We, in turn, benefit from the cultural diversity

         23  their inclusion brings to our society and the boost

         24  their working, spending and paying taxes brings to

         25  our economy. New York City has been revitalized by
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          2  newcomers to America, especially our brothers and

          3  sisters from Colombia. I wholeheartedly support the

          4  efforts of my colleague, Chairman Monserrate, in

          5  working to attain Temporary Protected Status for our

          6  brothers and sisters from Colombia.

          7                 I thank you for your leadership in

          8  bringing this issue to the forefront. Please be

          9  assured that I will work with you in our continued

         10  efforts to grant this much needed status to

         11  Colombians.

         12                 I would now like to turn the

         13  microphone over to the Chairman of the Select

         14  Committee on Civil Rights, Chairman Hiram

         15  Monserrate.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         17  very much, Mr. Chair.

         18                 I would also would also like to thank

         19  Chairman Serrano and the Cultural Committee for

         20  joining me today to discuss Resolution 184. And I

         21  introduced this resolution for one simple reason,

         22  granting TPS for Colombians is a matter of saving

         23  lives. Here in the United States we hear of the

         24  violence that ravages Colombia. At this very moment

         25  there is ongoing internal arms conflict threatening
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          2  the personal safety of millions of innocent

          3  Colombian civilians. Thousands of people have been

          4  killed, kidnapped or subjected to extorsion.

          5                 As a result of this dangerous

          6  climate, many Colombians have been forced to flee

          7  their home land and seek safety and refuge here in

          8  the United States.

          9                 Here in the U.S. we hear about all

         10  these issues, but they're all stories, an account of

         11  something that's going on far away from us. But in

         12  my district in Queens it is very real, in Jackson

         13  Heights, and Corona and Elmhurst.

         14                 I have met many of the Colombians who

         15  have told me their personal stories and of their

         16  hardships in their home lands. Unfortunately, many

         17  of these refugees enter the country under six-month

         18  tourist visas, which have expired, leaving them

         19  without legal status and vulnerable to deportation

         20  back to those very conditions that I've outlined.

         21                 Living in a constant state of fear

         22  about the possibility of themselves or their loved

         23  ones being returned to that climate.

         24                 Colombian people are in urgent need

         25  of this temporary protection, and that's why we're
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          2  here today, to give a public voice to the Colombian

          3  people and a public face to a community that is

          4  threatened if we do not step in.

          5                 At the heart of this Resolution,

          6  Resolution 184 is a call for action. TPS is a

          7  federal designation from the Department of Justice,

          8  therefore, it is up to the President of the United

          9  States and the Attorney General to show leadership

         10  and to avoid the census persecution of returning

         11  Colombian nationals back to that condition.

         12                 By granting TPS, Temporary Protective

         13  Status, to Colombians living in the U.S., our

         14  government could provide this protection and safe

         15  haven that Colombians are so desperately seeking.

         16                 TPS, created by Congress in 1990,

         17  empowers the Attorney General to designate a country

         18  for this status when he or she determines that there

         19  is an ongoing arms conflict within the State and due

         20  to that conflict the return of nationals to that

         21  state would pose a serious threat.

         22                 Not only is there documented

         23  empirical evidence from Colombians that fulfills

         24  this definition, there is growing grassroots demand

         25  for TPS throughout the U.S. and right here in New
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          2  York.

          3                 As the State that is home to a

          4  majority of Colombians in this country, elected

          5  officials at every level, of all political strikes,

          6  are showing their support. They have done so

          7  previously and they are doing it again today at this

          8  hearing. Offering protection to refugees is part of

          9  the foundation of our country and what we have

         10  established as a society. It is the foundation of

         11  our City, and it is the right thing to do.

         12                 I look forward to hearing from the

         13  various leaders and members of the Colombian

         14  communities and elected officials on their positions

         15  on TPS, and I would like to welcome our first

         16  witness, Mr. Carlos Manzano.

         17                 Mr. Manzano, please come up.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Mr. Chairman,

         19  while our first witness approaches the table, I

         20  would like to introduce the other members of this

         21  Committee.

         22                 I'm very happy to be joined by

         23  Council Member Tracy Boyland, Council Member James

         24  Davis, Council Member Allan Jennings.

         25                 Thank you very much for being here.
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          2                 You may begin. And when the light is

          3  off, the mic is on.

          4                 MR. MANZANO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          5  and members of the City Council on Civil Rights.

          6  We're here today because we've been making a call

          7  for a temporary protective status for Colombia

          8  nationals in the United States.

          9                 My name is Carlos Manzano, I am a

         10  Democratic State Committee member, representing the

         11  Hell's Kitchen and Chelsea areas, and also the

         12  President of the McManus Democratic Association.

         13  Just as important, I've been working very closely

         14  with the pro TPS Committee, which I am a member of.

         15                 Last Sunday we had a press conference

         16  at St. Francis of Assisi and the New York Times

         17  wrote an article, you'll see it in the package on

         18  the second page, where we are making a call to the

         19  Department of State to Colin Powell to grant TPS,

         20  and my colleague Zoilo Nieto will probably speak

         21  more about the meetings that we had in Washington

         22  and also what is going on in Washington, and what we

         23  need from the City Council, in terms of the

         24  Department of State, which is being the agency that

         25  has been obstructing this.
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          2                 Let me start by just giving you some

          3  figures in addition to what the Chairman mentioned

          4  before.

          5                 According to data gathered by the

          6  Human Rights organization called CODHES,

          7  C-O-D-H-E-S, which monitors the present dislocation

          8  of civilians in Colombia, between January 1st to

          9  March 31st, 2002, 90,175 people were dislocated from

         10  their homes, that is   a family every ten minutes,

         11  and 42 people per hour.

         12                 In 2001, the major newspaper in

         13  Colombia called El Piempo (phonetic) reported that

         14  there were 346 attacks worldwide.  In Colombia alone

         15  there were 191. That's 55.2 percent.

         16                 Secretary of State Colin Powell

         17  stated in a report that Guerrilla groups committed

         18  more than 3,500 murders during 2001. That same year,

         19  more than 3,000 people were reported kidnapped

         20  throughout Colombia. And there is a greater risk of

         21  being kidnapped in Colombia than in any other

         22  country in the world, and the New York Times

         23  actually put that quote on Monday's article, which I

         24  was very happy that they emphasized that.

         25                 In 1997 and October 2001, armed
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          2  groups, such as the Revolutionary Armed Forces of

          3  Colombia, and the National Liberation Army, were

          4  both designated as foreign terrorist organizations

          5  by the Secretary of State Powell.

          6                 I recently visited the web site for

          7  the Department of State, and on the web site, Mr.

          8  Powell's picture is there, very prominently, but

          9  there's a statement which caught my eye. And the

         10  statement reads: "America stands ready to help any

         11  country that wishes to join the Democratic world."

         12                 Colombia is the second oldest

         13  democracy in the western hemisphere, after the

         14  United States.

         15                 Colombia has been a democratic

         16  nation, but the armed conflict has ripped the

         17  country apart, and unfortunately has caused too many

         18  lives in the process.

         19                 There are probably between 80,000 and

         20  100,000, which is close to the figure Mr. Chairman

         21  reported before, more or less the estimate of

         22  Colombia nationals in the United States, and I would

         23  say a great majority are here in New York City

         24  because there's a strong Colombian community.

         25                 They have tremendous fear of being
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          2  deported back, and they're in a bind because if they

          3  go back, they face possible death. It's as simple as

          4  that. If they stay here, they will be persecuted by

          5  INS because they are illegal, and that's why TPS is

          6  such an important thing to obtain for Colombia

          7  nationals here in the United States.

          8                 So, I ask you, Mr. Chairman, the

          9  Committee and the City Council, to put the pressure

         10  on the Department of State, Colin Powell, Secretary

         11  of State Colin Powell, obviously the Attorney

         12  General, who is the final, the person who actually

         13  signs off on TPS, as well as the President of the

         14  United States, George W. Bush, to ensure that we get

         15  TPS for Colombian nationals in the United States.

         16                 I thank you for your time, I thank

         17  you for your support Councilman, Mr. Chairman, for

         18  the resolution that you introduced, and I look

         19  forward to working with you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: A couple of

         21  questions, sir.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Yes, just a

         23  couple quick questions.

         24                 Thank you very much for your

         25  testimony, and thank you for being here.
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          2                 You spoke about numbers, about the

          3  Colombia Nationals here in New York, the majority of

          4  them being in New York City and throughout the

          5  nation, living in fear, justifiably so, of being

          6  deported and what that would mean.

          7                 Do you have any instances or numbers

          8  of Colombia nationals being deported and in doing so

          9  facing violence and facing any sort of detriment in

         10  their return back to Colombia?

         11                 MR. MANZANO: One of the big problems

         12  that we have is that people are living in fear here

         13  also, and it's been very difficult for our community

         14  to have people come forward.

         15                 Luckily last Sunday I was able to get

         16  one of the individuals who is a potential

         17  beneficiary of TPS, even though she was there, she

         18  was afraid to speak before the cameras, and I wanted

         19  to ensure that she was protected, therefore I had

         20  her cousin, Cavier Duarte, speak on her behalf and

         21  tell her testimony.

         22                 Briefly I'll tell you the story.

         23  She's a dentist, a professional. She started

         24  receiving phone calls about death threats, and the

         25  demands that were being placed upon her family and
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          2  herself was that she pay a tax for her practice.

          3  Therefore, if she did not pay her daughter was going

          4  to be kidnapped and she was going to be killed.

          5                 This is just one of the many, many

          6  stories that we hear all the time, and I'm sure

          7  there are people in the audience who are going to be

          8  testifying on behalf of other people as well.

          9                 Thus, it's been difficult to gather

         10  data as well because the problem of fear, as I

         11  mentioned before. But according to our conversations

         12  with nationwide Colombian organizations, such as

         13  CASA in Miami, and in California we have major

         14  organizations as well, we're trying to bring this

         15  information together. But there isn't a central

         16  source of information where we can present it to

         17  someone or to the City Council, the Chairman, and

         18  say, Mr. Chairman, here are 600,000 cases. Again,

         19  the data is very difficult to obtain, and we hear it

         20  from people who trust us, who are waiting to share

         21  that information with us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 I'd like to turn it over to Council

         25  Member Allan Jennings to ask a question.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  CULTURAL AFFAIRS AND CIVIL RIGHTS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 If you could tell me, sir, this

          5  unrest that's taking place in Colombia, is this

          6  criminal activities or is this political unrest?

          7                 MR. MANZANO: What's happening in

          8  Colombia is that the Guerrilla groups that have been

          9  causing a lot of the problems, they have been

         10  financed throughout the years by narcotic

         11  trafficking. For the last three years, President

         12  Pastrana tried to establish peace accord where 12

         13  nations worldwide were involved --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I'm just

         15  trying to find out, are these attacks occurring

         16  because of politics, or is this occurring because of

         17  drug activities?

         18                 MR. MANZANO: Pretty much -- well,

         19  obviously it's not because of drug activity. The

         20  Guerrillas are involved in protecting areas where

         21  narcotic trafficking is taking place.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Is it the

         23  goal of these Guerrillas to overthrow the

         24  government, or is it the goal of these Guerrillas to

         25  continue narcotic trafficking?
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          2                 MR. MANZANO: It's both. When you have

          3  a government that isn't stable, the economy

          4  collapses, and, therefore, narcotic traffickers can

          5  do as they please.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So, people

          7  who are being attacked, are they being attacked

          8  because they're somehow interfering, or in the way

          9  of the narcotics? Or are they being attacked because

         10  of their politics?

         11                 MR. MANZANO: Let me just respond to

         12  the question, but I can make a statement before

         13  that.

         14                 Because of the way the United States

         15  is helping Colombia fight narcotic trafficking,

         16  what's happened is the Guerrilla groups are going to

         17  middle class people and upper class people and are

         18  kidnapping them for, obviously, asking for ransom,

         19  and in order to finance their operation. So, what

         20  they're doing is chasing the middle class and upper

         21  classes of Colombia and the working class, and

         22  asking for money in return from the practices, for

         23  example, the dentist actually testified, they wanted

         24  her to pay her some kind of money.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So what
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          2  you're saying is this is all due to -- it's all part

          3  of a criminal activity that's taking place in

          4  Colombia with regards to narcotics trafficking

          5  because the United States may be involved in funding

          6  the Colombian government to stop narcotics, the

          7  Guerrilla groups are actually harassing or

          8  persecuting the middle class because they want to

          9  continue drug trafficking; that's what you're

         10  saying?

         11                 MR. MANZANO: Probably to some degree

         12  they want to protect the areas where narcotics

         13  trafficking, where the cultivation of "coca" is

         14  taking place; therefore, they want to maintain those

         15  areas protected and expand.

         16                 Again, these groups, the President of

         17  Colombia Pastrana, brought them to the table, and

         18  for four years they tried to establish a peace

         19  accord, and it didn't work, it failed, and that's

         20  why the new President was so overwhelmed because

         21  with these groups you can't deal. They are going to

         22  kill individuals.

         23                 In fact, recently they blew up a

         24  church, more than 150 people inside, with a rocket,

         25  where women, children and seniors were, they all
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          2  perished.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The purpose

          4  of killing is the drug trafficking; that's what

          5  you're saying, right? It's all criminally related?

          6                 MR. MANZANO: I am not sure -- I think

          7  we're discussing here TPS, and drug trafficking is

          8  very much part of this whole conversation, but we're

          9  speaking about Colombia -- we're not talking about

         10  the problems going on in detail in Colombia, I think

         11  we're talking about Colombia nationals living in the

         12  United States, and I am giving you as much testimony

         13  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I'm

         15  listening to find out why we're going to vote on

         16  this, and what the problem in Colombia is that's

         17  causing this immigration.

         18                 MR. MANZANO: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Is the

         20  government of Colombia persecuting their citizens

         21  and that's the reason why they are fleeing? Or is it

         22  just because of criminal activity?

         23                 MR. MANZANO: Exactly.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So, it's not

         25  the government of Colombia who is persecuting their
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          2  citizens; is that correct?

          3                 MR. MANZANO: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Is that

          5  correct?

          6                 MR. MANZANO: The government tries to

          7  protect individuals. In fact, they are going to

          8  certain areas of the country because of the danger.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The

         10  government is protecting their citizens, but the

         11  drug traffickers are the ones, because they want to

         12  fulfill their market, of persecuting citizens; is

         13  that correct?

         14                 MR. MANZANO: Repeat the question. I'm

         15  sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The

         17  government is not the entity that is attacking their

         18  citizens, it's the drug traffickers.

         19                 MR. MANZANO: Absolutely. The

         20  government is always trying to protect these people.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Okay.

         22                 MR. MANZANO: And what's happening is

         23  that the situation has gotten out of hand.

         24                 We're dealing with a group of

         25  probably 70,000 individuals who are well equipped,
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          2  well funded, are organized, come and keep everybody

          3  in chaos and in constant fear, and they have access

          4  to every region of the country that they can get

          5  into.

          6                 In fact, that's why some people don't

          7  even dare to -- I should say the government is very

          8  cautious in going into certain areas of the country.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: One last

         10  question with regard to immigration.

         11                 How are the people who are in the

         12  United States, how are they making it here? In what

         13  means are they coming here? What status are they

         14  leaving Colombia to get here in the first place?

         15                 MR. MANZANO: How are people getting

         16  here?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Many people,

         18  as the Chairman mentioned before, come here on

         19  extended visas. Many people somehow find a way to a

         20  relative to come here, perhaps through a tourist

         21  visa. Many other people dare to come other ways.

         22  People find a way -- when you face death, when you

         23  get up in the morning and you know that you are not

         24  going to be able to walk the streets or go about

         25  doing your daily life, what do you do? You have to
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          2  get up and leave, and that's what a lot of people

          3  have done, they left because they are facing death

          4  or kidnapping, as simple as that.

          5                 MR. MANZANO: So, the people entering

          6  the United States are entering on some type of legal

          7  status to get into the country.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: But when

          9  they get here they want to flee the criminal

         10  activities in Colombia?

         11                 MR. MANZANO: They try to find a way

         12  to stay here legally, but because of the changes in

         13  immigration since 1994 and as a result of 9/11

         14  things are getting tighter. So, therefore, they're

         15  finding whatever means possible, and they're coming

         16  to us, the people who are in the Colombian

         17  community, and Councilman Monserrate who represents

         18  the largest community district I'm sure is getting a

         19  lot of phone calls from people with all kinds of

         20  stories. Again, whether it will be a tourist visa,

         21  be a student visa, and those visas are about to

         22  expire or they already expired, and they are in fear

         23  of being deported back to Colombia. Some are already

         24  under an illegal status, and what do you do with

         25  people? Do you tell them, well, that's fine, you
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          2  have to be deported, you have to return, you have to

          3  fend for yourself when you arrive to Colombia? No, I

          4  believe that's why we're here, to defend those who

          5  can't fend for themselves, to help them obtain a

          6  policy that was enacted by Congress in 1990 called

          7  TPS, which has been granted already to 12 countries.

          8  And recently was re-extended to Nicaragua and El

          9  Salvadorians, and it acts -- it's not only a policy,

         10  it's a humanitarian act, and we're dealing with

         11  thousands of individuals, the lives of many

         12  thousands of individuals here in the United States.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: One

         14  question. In Nicaragua and El Salvador, there was a

         15  civil war in place, right? And the government was

         16  persecuting their citizens. In this case in

         17  Colombia, it's the criminals who are persecuting

         18  citizens, so it's a little different in terms of the

         19  acts.

         20                 MR. MANZANO: I will have to give you

         21  a lot of history about Colombia.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: The act is

         23  the same thing, that people are being persecuted,

         24  which is terrible and horrible, but the motivation

         25  is a little different regarding Nicaragua and El
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          2  Salvador, those are civil wars that took place; is

          3  that correct?

          4                 MR. MANZANO: Colombia has been

          5  undergoing a civil war for 45 years. I didn't make

          6  the statement before because I didn't want to get

          7  into a history of Colombia, which started back in

          8  the early fifties, when President Jocandia

          9  (phonetic) was killed, and a period of violence

         10  erupted that lasted for nearly 20 years.

         11                 During the seventies and eighties,

         12  unfortunately narcotics trafficking took over, and

         13  they were well funded, well organized and killed

         14  anyone who stood on the way to try to disrupt their

         15  operation.

         16                 In the nineties the cartels were

         17  dismantled and what has resulted since the 1950s is

         18  a group of movements, Guerrilla groups, such as the

         19  revolutionary armed forces, that want control, want

         20  to maintain the government unstable, want to

         21  constantly create fear, and, obviously, when you see

         22  men with major weapons around you, and you don't

         23  know if they're going to fire those bullets at you,

         24  is a very scary experience.

         25                 Therefore, what we have today in the
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          2  Year 2002 are these Guerrilla groups that really

          3  were a product of the fifties that came around since

          4  the late fifties, and it's -- what can I tell you,

          5  it's hard for me to understand how killing human

          6  beings is right in their minds, just like we

          7  experienced here with 9/11, it's beyond my

          8  imagination, but unfortunately we're trying to clear

          9  that problem, we're hoping that with the new

         10  administration of Amadou Rivelas (phonetic) we can

         11  work closely, the Colombian American community can

         12  work closely with him, to try to solve this problem.

         13  It's going to be a slow process. I think Colombia

         14  has much to offer, much more than what you always

         15  hear in the news here, always narcotic trafficking

         16  stories. Colombia has tremendous amounts of

         17  resources, tremendous potential, an awful amount of

         18  skillful people. In fact, many countries, such as

         19  Australia and Canada do want some of the Colombians

         20  because they have some of the highest degrees, I

         21  will say highest educated individuals in South

         22  America.

         23                 So, we are dealing with 80 percent of

         24  people, 90 percent of the people are great, it's

         25  always that one percent that causes chaos, any
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          2  place, it could be in Colombia, it could be even

          3  here in New York. And I'm sure, Councilman, you have

          4  experienced that one percent can cause a lot of

          5  damage, and that's what they have close to in

          6  Colombia throughout the years.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Thank you,

          8  sir.

          9                 And thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 MR. MANZANO: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Thank you,

         12  Council member.

         13                 Now I'd like to call upon Council

         14  Member Boyland.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Don't leave

         16  yet. I'll be brief though.

         17                 MR. MANZANO: My apologies.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Let me just

         19  ask you a few brief questions.

         20                 MR. MANZANO: Sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Do we have a

         22  copy of the citizens now -- according to our

         23  Chairman's statement there are 77,000 Colombians

         24  that are here on a six-month temporary visa, a

         25  tourist visa, in asking for, to see the 77,000 or so
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          2  people that would like to have asylum in the United

          3  States, what are their histories and their

          4  backgrounds? Were they students? Some of the

          5  background of some of the people that are here now.

          6                 MR. MANZANO: Most of the people,

          7  again, this is information that we exchange through

          8  our networks throughout the United States, most of

          9  the people that we find are professionals, middle,

         10  upper-class people. They come here with, in fact,

         11  they do have professions. Many, if not most of them,

         12  do wish to return to Colombia. The reason for that

         13  is because they have an established profession, they

         14  have a life, they have a pretty good way of living,

         15  a standard of living. But, unfortunately, they

         16  cannot maintain their standard of living in Colombia

         17  because of the present situation. So they are forced

         18  to, in many cases --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: When you say

         20  "professionals," do you mean an educator, doctors,

         21  lawyers?

         22                 MR. MANZANO: Talking about doctors,

         23  for example, the lady who testified at the press

         24  conference -- forgive me, the person who spoke about

         25  her cousin, she's a dentist. We have doctors, we
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          2  have people who are experts in technology. We have

          3  engineers, we have teachers. So, we go across the

          4  board from A to Z, in terms of professionals, and

          5  there isn't one specific profession they're all in.

          6  It's very varied, and I would say something that I

          7  notice, maybe engineers, I notice a lot of them tend

          8  to focus on that industry, and in fact, I just heard

          9  a report recently that Canada is trying to bring

         10  engineers from Colombia, because they need the

         11  skills.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, and in

         13  asking that question, the follow-up concern is, of

         14  course, when you come to New York City we're looking

         15  at situations now because of 9/11 where there is

         16  immense amount of unemployment, we're going now into

         17  a recession, there are economic issues that we have,

         18  we're going through within the City, as you can

         19  tell, by our last budget. How, in terms of, are they

         20  able now to become productive citizens? And I'm sure

         21  your answer would be yes if they're engineers, but

         22  are there some that have come over that may have had

         23  records, ex-felons, or something of that nature,

         24  that needs to be addressed or needs to be looked at

         25  in terms of making them, extending their visas or
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          2  making them completely US citizens? Or are they

          3  seeking to be US citizens? That's the next question.

          4                 MR. MANZANO: Well, first of all, to

          5  become a shear citizen, you've got to become a

          6  permanent resident first.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          8                 MR. MANZANO: So, it's kind of a

          9  lengthy process. You've got to be a permanent

         10  resident of the United States of five years before

         11  you can apply for citizenship.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         13                 MR. MANZANO: So, at this moment there

         14  will be a dream for them to seek permanent residence

         15  in the United States, but at this moment we, and

         16  when I say "we," the committee, the

         17  Colombian-American community and the Colombian

         18  nationals who are here are looking to get PPS,

         19  because that's really the more realistic things.

         20                 I'm a very practical person and I

         21  understand that the result of 9/11 is not going to

         22  allow us to go further, like many people will think

         23  that an amnesty should be the right thing, it is the

         24  right thing, but it's the wrong climate, and we all

         25  understand that. They are tightening up immigration
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          2  laws all over the place, and that's not going to

          3  happen.

          4                 But PPS can happen. It has happened

          5  and it just recently happened by extending PPS to

          6  Salvadorians and Nicaraguans.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. Well,

          8  we understand that New York, of course, is the

          9  melting pot, that's why we have that beautiful lady

         10  standing there.

         11                 Let me just ask you one more question

         12  about, have any of the 77,000 Colombians stayed here

         13  beyond their visa, their six-month visa? Has there

         14  been an extension, in terms of, have they been here

         15  longer?

         16                 MR. MANZANO: My experience from

         17  people who have come to my office, and the

         18  Councilman can actually perhaps provide more data,

         19  because he has a Colombian, a heavy Colombian

         20  district, is that a lot of people overstay their

         21  visas because they are in fear of returning and they

         22  are not being extended. Many of them are not going

         23  to get an extension, especially student visas, and I

         24  understand, and a good friend of my at the World

         25  Trade used to tell me that they are not giving visas
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          2  anymore, that they are not going to extend them, and

          3  those who are here in schools, INS is going to

          4  ensure, and the schools are going to ensure that

          5  indeed they're attending that school. So, as I said,

          6  they're going to tighten up the rules, and some are

          7  going to be without visas soon, and some in fact

          8  don't have their visa anymore, because --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, my

         10  recollection is in Brooklyn where myself and Council

         11  Member Yvette Clarke and Council Member James Davis,

         12  there's a high density of Caribbeans that come, and

         13  it's very difficult for us to have communication.

         14                 You know, you say Council Member

         15  Monserrate has people there walking in his office,

         16  but it's very difficult for us to sometimes even

         17  contact people that have stayed beyond their visa

         18  because they're in hiding most of the time because

         19  they don't want to be sent back to their country.

         20                 So, the numbers, are these numbers

         21  accurate, when we say 77,000?

         22                 MR. MANZANO: Everything is an

         23  estimate when we talk about numbers. We are not

         24  putting concrete numbers, and I don't think there's

         25  anyway to put any concrete numbers, precisely
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          2  because of the reasons that you mentioned,

          3  Councilwoman, in regard to the fear that people have

          4  and regard to misinformation that they may have --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And it's a

          6  very difficult time doing a census in East Flatbush.

          7                 MR. MANZANO: In fact, even in the

          8  census for those who are here, there was a serious

          9  miscount and the New York Times even wrote an

         10  article saying that, in fact, the Colombian

         11  population was undercounted.

         12                 So, having said that for the ones who

         13  are here, for the ones who are coming now, they

         14  usually approach people who they can trust, people

         15  who they feel safe with, and it takes awhile to

         16  bring them into areas where, as the elected

         17  officials are dealing with, and, so, we can try to

         18  get a better picture of what we're dealing with.

         19                 Again, these are estimates to the

         20  best of our ability.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes. Thank

         22  you very much.

         23                 MR. MANZANO: Thank you, Councilwoman.

         24  I'm sorry for my getting up, I thought they were

         25  done.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Thank you.

          3  Before you leave, and I have other questions, and

          4  before I turn it over to the floor, to the other

          5  Council members, I'd like to be mindful of Council

          6  Member Boyland's schedule, and I know that she's

          7  very much in support but she does have to leave

          8  soon. So, I would like to extend the opportunity to

          9  her to open up the vote just so she can record her

         10  vote before she leaves.

         11                 So, I beg the indulgence of the rest

         12  of the Committee while we do this.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Boyland.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I vote aye.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Now we will continue with the

         18  testimony at this part, and Council Member James

         19  Davis has a quick question before we move on to the

         20  other members.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: How do you know

         23  my question is quick?

         24                 First of all, let me say, Carols A.

         25  Manzano?
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          2                 MR. MANZANO: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: You are a State

          4  Democratic Committeman?

          5                 MR. MANZANO: Correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: I am also.

          7                 MR. MANZANO: That's right. You're my

          8  colleague.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Over in the

         10  43rd Assembly District. But I think you're a hero. I

         11  really do. I think you're a hero -- I just want to,

         12  before I go any further, standing up for the

         13  Colombian people, being a role model, putting your

         14  -- I don't know if this is the right thing, I don't

         15  know if you're putting your life on the line, I

         16  don't know if that's the right thing to say, and

         17  because I don't know, has there been any serious

         18  opposition to your activities, as far as getting,

         19  granting TPS?

         20                 I mean, I heard you earlier say the

         21  Guerrilla groups, as well as you said versus the

         22  government, have some of these Guerrilla groups made

         23  any threats?

         24                 MR. MANZANO: Yes, I've been fortunate

         25  that, and I'm an American citizen here so I think
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          2  they're more careful about it.  You never know with

          3  these people what they're going to do.

          4                 My parents still live in Colombia.

          5  Every time the phone rings, sometimes I don't know

          6  if I'm going to get a bad phone call. In fact,

          7  they're in the process of coming to the United

          8  States. That's how bad things are down there.

          9                 My mother had a business for 45

         10  years, she was her own businesswoman. She was

         11  probably pioneers of women who started her own

         12  business. She's 75 years old and she tells me that

         13  she can no longer work under the conditions that

         14  Colombia is going through. Because my father used to

         15  travel throughout the country to do business, he can

         16  no longer do that. It's unsafe.

         17                 So, I haven't had any direct threats.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Has your family

         19  home, your mother, your father, have they received

         20  any direct threats?

         21                 MR. MANZANO: No, thank God.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Thank God.

         23                 If ever you even think that they are

         24  receiving -- if someone looks at them incorrectly,

         25  please do not hesitate to reach out to yours truly,
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          2  along with this Councilman Monserrate and on this

          3  Committee. Please. Because you are putting it out

          4  there, and there's a saying that "the apple doesn't

          5  fall too far from the tree," so your moms and pops

          6  back in Colombia should be very, very proud.

          7                 Now, you said, you were very clear

          8  that you think that the people are fleeing because

          9  of the Guerrilla activities, and you said you don't

         10  think it was because of the government. Your

         11  position is that the government is on the side of

         12  the people, the people are not fleeing because of

         13  the government, and my question is, are there any

         14  people that are here in America that may have flee'd

         15  (sic) because of the government?

         16                 MR. MANZANO: Throughout the years

         17  probably some people have gotten discouraged about

         18  the way government was run. My parents back in -- my

         19  father came back to the United States the first time

         20  back in the early fifties. He was probably one of

         21  the first people to come to the U.S., the first

         22  wave, and back in the seventies they believed that I

         23  could have a better future in the United States.

         24                 There was a lot taking place, but the

         25  parliament in Colombia is so complicated, I can't
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          2  even begin to describe 50 years of conflict. You

          3  probably would have to go to the political science

          4  professors to give us a tremendous background story

          5  on it. It's a very complex problem that I can't even

          6  describe in one statement.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: And that's why

          8  I think maybe my colleague, perhaps and I don't want

          9  to speak for him, maybe some might be thrown off

         10  because some of the people fleeing may not be

         11  fleeing because of their displeasure with the

         12  Guerrilla groups, they may be fleeing because of

         13  their displeasure with the government. Regardless,

         14  let me make this clear, because I'm going to get out

         15  of here in a second, regardless of whether it's the

         16  government, which your position is that the

         17  government is doing all they can, and I don't know

         18  enough about the Colombian government, or whether

         19  it's the Guerrilla groups, as far as I'm concerned,

         20  as here in America since the implementation of TPS

         21  in 1990, it has been granted temporary protective

         22  service, it has been granted to people from

         23  countries such as the former Yugoslavia and Honduras

         24  and Nicaragua, El Salvador, and so on and so forth,

         25  and if people are subject to serious acts of
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          2  violence, and if people are victims and caught in

          3  the crossfire, we, as Americans, should do all that

          4  we can to provide safety, and Mr. Chair, if I can

          5  make my vote at this time, I would like to go on

          6  record as making my vote --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Yes, you may.

          8  Yes, you may.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: I would like to

         10  go on record as the Councilman of the 35th

         11  Councilmanic District, and I had a friend a long

         12  time ago, her name was Lillian, and she was from

         13  Colombia, and I remember her telling me the various

         14  stories with her father and her mother in coming to

         15  this country of America, and being type cast or

         16  stereotyped and I would like to say that we know

         17  that every Colombian is not involved in the cartel

         18  and so on and so forth, there are many hard-working

         19  wonderful living Colombians that contribute to

         20  America every single day. So, I would like to make

         21  my vote or vote aye for this issue, and thank you so

         22  very much, Mr. Chair, the Select Committee, Hiram

         23  Monserrate, Mr. Chair, of the Cultural Affairs

         24  Committee, Councilman Serrano, for giving me this

         25  opportunity.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you,

          3  Councilman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Thank you very

          5  much. And before you go, I think just to sum up a

          6  little bit, I take from the gist of everything that

          7  you were saying, the important thing here at this

          8  hearing is to really make it very clear what the

          9  United States government role should be for the

         10  people of Colombia living in this nation. There's

         11  really, you know, so much that we can say or do

         12  about what's happening in Colombia, I think what

         13  we're really focusing on here is the importance that

         14  the United States do the right thing, and make sure

         15  that those who are here who are fleeing the civil

         16  unrest, whatever the causes may be of that is

         17  another issue. The point is that those who are here

         18  need to be able to have the safe haven and I thank

         19  you for your testimony. I know it was a little long,

         20  there was a lot of questions, but I thank you for

         21  your indulgence and thanks again for all your input.

         22                 MR. MANZANO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And I also

         24  want to echo, thanks to your gratitude for your

         25  testimony and for your longstanding advocacy on this
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          2  issue. So, thank you very much, Mr. Manzano.

          3                 I would like to now at this point

          4  call up Luz Mendez representing Senator Hillary

          5  Clinton's office.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr.

          7  Chairman, if I may make a statement before the

          8  witness, if you don't mind?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Yes, you may,

         10  Council member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: So far

         12  listening to the witness, and I was a sponsor on

         13  this bill, I'm a little concerned now that after

         14  listening to the testimony, because I want to do

         15  what's right on behalf of the people of Colombia,

         16  what's right on behalf of the United States

         17  government, in terms of how we do go about

         18  protecting the people of Colombia in the best way,

         19  and how do we protect our country in the best way.

         20  It seems to me from the testimony I've heard so far,

         21  and that's why I want to speak before the other

         22  witnesses come up, so they can be more convincing,

         23  that the problems with Colombia seems that it's a

         24  criminal problem, it's a problem of kidnapping,

         25  problem of the drug traffickers and the guerrillas
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          2  want to make their money in their market so they're

          3  attacking the middle class and upper classes, and we

          4  have this type of problem that takes place in other

          5  countries around the World. We have kidnapping in

          6  the Philippines currently, there's kidnappings in

          7  Indonesia, and what I'm concerned about, for

          8  example, let's start with Colombia, if we open the

          9  doors and we tell the upper class and the middle

         10  class and the people, the talented of people of

         11  Colombia, to come on over here, we're going to

         12  protect you, come on over, what happens to Colombia?

         13  What happens to their country that they love so

         14  dearly?

         15                 I mean, are they going to flee their

         16  country and not stand up and fight these criminals?

         17  These thugs and criminals are going to run them out

         18  of the county, and if they all flee and leave, does

         19  not the thugs and the criminals of Colombia win?

         20                 Should we not be more responsible in

         21  terms of encourage them to flee their country and

         22  leave the country of their birth, the country that

         23  they love so much, but encourage them to stay there

         24  and fight for their country? And maybe we should be

         25  asking the federal government to send them funds to
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          2  do this, whatever millions of dollars they're

          3  providing right now to help Colombia? Maybe that

          4  money is not enough money, maybe we should be

          5  putting in, if they're only contributing a billion

          6  dollars, maybe we should be contributing $10 billion

          7  to Colombia to help Colombia.

          8                 You know, the concern I have is, I

          9  just visited Guyana just a week before I came into

         10  office, and it came to my attention recently that

         11  the country, for example, that country is being

         12  overrun with crime. Recently gunmen entered the

         13  presidential palace and robbed the presidential

         14  palace, their computers, robbed the people, shot two

         15  guards. So, now, do the people of Guyana say, now,

         16  our country can't protect us, look, they're robbing

         17  the presidential palace, the president is not safe,

         18  we're not safe, so please allow us to come here and

         19  give us protection and let us come here to this

         20  country? Where does it end?

         21                 I think we need to -- the witnesses

         22  have to be more compelling to let me believe that

         23  they're being civilly persecuted, not criminally

         24  persecuted. Because if that's the case, I find it

         25  very difficult and non-responsible for me to support
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          2  this, if it's a case of criminal activities, and

          3  people are fleeing from activities when they should

          4  be standing up for their country.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: If I might just

          6  quickly respond to that, Council member?

          7                 I understand your concerns, and I

          8  think that that is a very important issue. But I

          9  think the purpose of this hearing is more to

         10  determine temporary protective status which is a

         11  policy of the United States which has been afforded

         12  to other countries, and if that should be afforded,

         13  which I believe it should, to Colombians who are in

         14  this country, because of the very nature of the safe

         15  haven that we could provide. Yes, there are other

         16  issue involving that, but in the meantime, you know,

         17  the people who are here, the safety of them is sort

         18  of our utmost importance, my utmost importance.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr.

         20  Chairman, I'm not debating you, and I understand our

         21  noble reasons for being here, and a noble cause,

         22  it's just that, you know, the countries where the

         23  temporary status was granted, countries that had a

         24  real civil unrest, Sierra Leone, and other countries

         25  that's mentioned here where temporary status is
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          2  based on because the government was persecuting the

          3  citizens, and certain citizens who were politically

          4  active was afraid that the government was going to

          5  retaliate because they're standing up for the

          6  government.

          7                 In this case the people are being

          8  persecuted by criminal activity, and the government

          9  of Colombia is doing everything they can, based on

         10  the testimony that the last witness was here saying,

         11  that they're doing everything they can to protect

         12  their citizens but they're just not able to.

         13                 I think one of the things we may want

         14  to come back and do in the future is put a

         15  resolution to provide more funding to the Colombian

         16  police, on the Colombian police to help train the

         17  Colombian police, to put more DEA agents in Colombia

         18  to go out and root out this problem, and I just ask

         19  the witnesses that come forward further if they

         20  could please convince me that this is a political

         21  problem and not so much as a criminal problem.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Councilman, I

         23  would like to respond to your statements,

         24  particularly pertaining to the civil unrest. There

         25  is most definitely documented civil unrest. The fact
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          2  that there are different factions of Guerrillas who

          3  are having war, because this is war, coupled with

          4  criminal activity makes the issue that much more

          5  pressing and that much more emerging for our

          6  government here in the United States to deal with.

          7                 We're dealing specifically with the

          8  issue of TPS for Colombians who are already here,

          9  and some of the broader issues in the context that

         10  you are outlining, largely things that are much

         11  larger than this Council, and in many respects much

         12  larger than our government's actions to date on a

         13  federal or international level.

         14                 But not that I want to get into that

         15  debate, I would like to hear the additional

         16  testimony. There are several people here who have

         17  more facts and information that they're going to be

         18  presenting today, and other individuals who are

         19  representing elected officials here, including

         20  Hillary Clinton, so if we can begin, thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MS. MENDEZ: Thank you, Council Member

         23  Monserrate, for inviting Senator Clinton to join you

         24  at this important hearing.

         25                 My name is Luz Mendez, and I was born
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          2  in Colombia, so I know exactly what we're talking

          3  about here.

          4                 Senator Clinton is in Washington,

          5  D.C. today and has asked that I come before you and

          6  your Committee on her behalf. I will read a

          7  statement from the Senator. I am here, as well, to

          8  take back to her any comments, recommendations or

          9  concerns you wish to bring to her attention

         10  regarding this matter.

         11                 I want to express my support to grant

         12  temporary protective status to Colombians who are

         13  currently residing in the United States.

         14                 Colombia most clearly meets the

         15  criteria for temporary protective status

         16  designation. Throughout the past decade, Colombia

         17  has endured widespread internal armed conflict and

         18  serious violence. Human rights abuses have soared to

         19  unprecedented levels. Escalating violence has

         20  claimed the lives of over 35,000 innocent Colombian

         21  civilians, and led a population of over 1 million

         22  internally displaced persons.

         23                 Many Colombians have sought refuge

         24  and protection from violence in the United States,

         25  with thousands of these individuals currently
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          2  residing in New York State, and more specifically,

          3  New York City. Some have been the victims of

          4  kidnapping, others have been the victims of

          5  extortion by guerrillas or paramilitary groups. We

          6  cannot in good conscience require Colombians seeking

          7  refuge in the United States to return to their

          8  country under the present conditions.

          9                 This would be a serious threat to

         10  their safety.

         11                 Our willingness to provide Temporary

         12  Protected Status for Colombians exemplifies our

         13  nation's responsibility to provide a safe haven for

         14  those in danger of suffering from gross human rights

         15  violations.

         16                 For these reasons, I want to express

         17  my support for City Council Resolution 184, which

         18  calls upon President Bush and Attorney General

         19  Ashcroft to grant Temporary Protective status to

         20  Colombians. I have also written a letter to the

         21  President with my colleagues Senators Kennedy and

         22  Brownback urging President Bush to grant Colombia

         23  Temporary Protected Status designation.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 The next person we're going to call

          4  is Alexandra Ventura from the Governor's office.

          5                 But before Ms. Ventura speaks, I'd

          6  like to also acknowledge the fact, and I'd like to

          7  read into the record a statement was sent here by

          8  Congressman Joseph Crowly from Queens, and it says

          9  that "I am pleased that we are shedding light on

         10  this issue. I have been working for a long time in

         11  Washington, and while I would like to be with you

         12  here today, I am in Washington on Congressional

         13  business. Make no mistake about it, there are a lot

         14  of Colombians currently living in Queens who are

         15  pleading to remain in the United States. They are

         16  afraid to return to their native countries because

         17  of the ongoing civil wars, drug wars, kidnappings

         18  and political insurrections. There are thousands of

         19  lives depending on our government extending TPS

         20  status to Colombians, men, women, and children.

         21                 As the Founder and Chairman of the

         22  Andean Region Caucus, I have worked to increase

         23  awareness of the situation in Colombia to provide

         24  aid to the people of that nation and to work towards

         25  TPS for Colombians. That is why I am a lead democrat
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          2  on legislation known as the Andean Adjustment Act,

          3  which would provide for the adjustment to permanent

          4  resident status of certain U.S. resident Colombians,

          5  nationals, as well as their spouses and family.

          6                 I support this bill because many

          7  Colombians applied for asylum and refuge in

          8  admission to the U.S. In spite of their strong

          9  cases, most were denied and consequently appealed.

         10  According to the INS 1989 and 1997, accumulative

         11  approval rate for Colombians was just 15.8 percent,

         12  far below in number of other countries, but while I

         13  work in Congress for the passage of this bipartisan

         14  bill, I continue my lobbying of Congress and this

         15  Administration to extend TPS for Colombians living

         16  in the United States."

         17                 And I would like to thank Congressman

         18  Crowly publicly for sending this statement, and

         19  along with Congressman Crowly, United States Senator

         20  Schumer also supports the granting of TPS, and our

         21  local congress people, Nydia Velazquez, Jose

         22  Serrano, Luis Gutierrez from Chicago, and also

         23  Congressman Jerry Nadler. And that's just to name a

         24  few, there are various other congress folks that are

         25  supporting this bill that have called my office in
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          2  support and asked me to ensure that we mentioned

          3  that they are also in support of this bill, and at

          4  this point I would like to hear from a

          5  representative from our Governor Pataki's office,

          6  Alexandra Ventura.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Before you begin

          8  I would just like to acknowledge the Council Member

          9  David Weprin has joined us. He's a member of this

         10  Committee. He's also the Chairman of the Finance

         11  Committee, the very powerful Finance Committee.

         12                 Thank you for being with us.

         13                 MS. VENTURA: Good afternoon, Chairman

         14  Serrano and Chairman Monserrate, Council members. My

         15  name is Alexandra Ventura and I am Director of the

         16  New York State Citizenship Unit under the Governor's

         17  Office.

         18                 It is my pleasure to represent

         19  Governor Pataki at this hearing and testify in

         20  support of temporary protective status for

         21  Colombians.

         22                 Throughout history, immigrants have

         23  proven to be an essential part, economic, social,

         24  and political development of this great state and

         25  nation, and Governor Pataki is proud of New York's
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          2  growing and thriving immigrant community.

          3                 Colombians constitute one of the

          4  fastest growing communities, and their unique

          5  heritage and culture are important, an integral part

          6  of the population of the City and the State of New

          7  York.

          8                 Colombia is experiencing internal

          9  civil conflict and has claims the lives of thousands

         10  of innocent citizens and displaced people from their

         11  homes. An estimated 200,000 have been displaced and

         12  currently reside in the United States, mostly in the

         13  City and the State of New York.

         14                 Most of the Colombian nationals are

         15  middle class families, academic, small business

         16  owners, professionals, teachers, who leave their

         17  country in hopes of finding stability and personal

         18  safety.

         19                 TPS is urgently needed to protect the

         20  lives and the safety of Colombians whose visas

         21  expired, who have entered the country without proper

         22  documentation, by granting them legal status and

         23  work authorization.

         24                 TPS brings a measure of freedom,

         25  protection, and peace to those who escape violence
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          2  and injustice in their country and who seek safety

          3  in ours.

          4                 To the Colombian community, TPS

          5  represents a vital solution to the difficulties they

          6  have experienced in maintaining unemployment,

          7  supporting their families, and avoiding the return

          8  to their war-torn homeland.

          9                 Governor Pataki has been a long-time

         10  supporter of Temporary Protective Status for

         11  Colombian nationals. He has urged President Bush,

         12  Attorney General Ashcroft, to approve the granting

         13  of TPS and recently sent a letter to Secretary of

         14  State Colin Powell reiterating his support. In his

         15  letter Governor Pataki has stated that he is willing

         16  to meet with Secretary Powell on this matter.

         17                 Attached you will find letters,

         18  copies of the letters that Governor Pataki has sent

         19  to President Bush, Attorney General Ashcroft, and

         20  Secretary of State Powell in support of TPS.

         21                 After September 11th, New Yorkers now

         22  know the danger of terrorism firsthand, and Governor

         23  Pataki believes that Colombians should not live

         24  under this regime of terrorists.

         25                 Governor Pataki will continue to work
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          2  with the leaders of the Colombian community, his

          3  colleagues, Washington officials, to make sure that

          4  we receive a definite answer and help the Colombian

          5  nationals who are presently in New York.

          6                 The call for TPS is resounding

          7  nationwide, and the support is needed at the local,

          8  at the state and at the federal level. The New York

          9  State Assembly has issued a resolution, which was

         10  passed last year asking President Bush to grant

         11  Colombians TPS and I applaud Council Member

         12  Monserrate and also Council Member Serrano for

         13  bringing this issue to the forefront to the City

         14  Council, and urging the Committee to pass this

         15  resolution and join the efforts currently being

         16  undertaken for TPS for Colombians.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         19  very much, Ms. Ventura. And I'd like to call now

         20  Tanya Washington from the Civil Rights Bureau of our

         21  New York State Attorney General's Office Eliot

         22  Spitzer.

         23                 MS. WASHINGTON: Good afternoon,

         24  Councilman Monserrate, Councilman Serrano, and

         25  members of the City Council, my name is Tanya
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          2  Washington, and I am the Deputy Chief for the Civil

          3  Rights Bureau in the Office of Attorney General

          4  Eliot Spitzer.

          5                 The Office of the Attorney General is

          6  pleased to lend its voice today to the issues raised

          7  in this hearing. Attorney General Spitzer regrets

          8  that he could not be here personally, but has

          9  prepared a statement which I have been asked to read

         10  on his behalf.

         11                 I want to give my strong support to

         12  the Resolution sponsored by Councilman Monserrate

         13  calling on President Bush and Attorney General

         14  Ashcroft to grant temporary protective status to the

         15  many Colombians living here in New York City and in

         16  the United States.

         17                 In August of 2001, I wrote to

         18  President George W. Bush and Attorney General John

         19  Ashcroft, urging them to grant TPS status to persons

         20  of Colombian descent.

         21                 I firmly believe that this action is

         22  needed in light of the lack of stability in Colombia

         23  today.

         24                 The level of violence in Colombia has

         25  increased so significantly that our government has
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          2  advised all U.S. citizens against traveling to

          3  Colombia due to safety concerns.

          4                 Each and every day the news media

          5  brings reports of human rights violations and abuse.

          6  Colombian nationals continue to face the risk of

          7  being deported from the U.S. to a life-threatening

          8  conflict in their home country. This is precisely

          9  the situation that the Congress envisioned when it

         10  passed TPS as a humanitarian response to

         11  circumstances where people would be in harm's way if

         12  returned to their home land.

         13                 Over the years, Salvadorians,

         14  Angolans and others from countries in crisis, have

         15  been afforded this special status.

         16                 I believe that Colombians deserve the

         17  same protections, and I will continue to call on the

         18  President to grant TPS status to those Colombians

         19  living in the United States.

         20                 I believe, as does Councilman

         21  Monserrate, and many others, that the Bush

         22  Administration must take this important step to

         23  protect those who wish to live in peace.

         24                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         25  to address you today. The Civil Rights Bureau
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          2  continues to be concerned in matters of

          3  discrimination, as well as matters facing immigrants

          4  in this country and we welcome you to contact us if

          5  you have issues in those regards.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

          8  very much.

          9                 Please send our regards to Attorney

         10  General.

         11                 Okay, at this point I would like to

         12  call up TPS For Colombians Committee. We have Zoilo

         13  Nieto and Mr. William Salgado. Please come up, and

         14  both of your are welcomed to our Chambers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: You may begin.

         16                 MR. NIETO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         17  Monserrate. Thank you, Mr. Chairman Serrano.

         18                 I also would like to thank all the

         19  members of the Committee. At the same time I have

         20  very good issues to bring to this particular

         21  Committee and to the audience here today.

         22                 I have to specify that we have, just

         23  for the Councilman Jennings, 40,000 deaths, what we

         24  have in Colombia, and our conflict, it's over about

         25  45 years, and it started with, starting identifying
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          2  the conflict in Colombia is one of the most

          3  difficult things to do. Very difficult, very

          4  complicated. But if you look into the history, the

          5  Guerrillas were founded initially by the Russian

          6  system, and if you look into the history, to answer

          7  the question of Councilman, the Guerrillas still

          8  believe that they can have a communist country in

          9  Colombia, and that's what they fight for. And

         10  whether they get through the narcotics traffickers,

         11  it's just procedures and the way, the methods that

         12  they use to get to the power.

         13                 So, initially we have to identify the

         14  conflicts and the difficult situation in Colombia,

         15  and basically our Committee, our TPS Committee is

         16  not basically advocating for Colombians that are

         17  coming tomorrow or after tomorrow, we are looking

         18  for Temporary Protective Status for Colombians that

         19  are here. The majority of these Colombians' visas

         20  expire and they are illegal in this country, and

         21  probably try and survive making some cash, which TPS

         22  will allow them to get a work permit and to be able

         23  to pay taxes to the City, at the same time would

         24  allow them to have a driver's license. And the

         25  majority of these Colombians are middle class
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          2  professionals, and if you look into the history, out

          3  of all of the 11 countries, they already get TPS,

          4  all of the professionals' tendency is to go back to

          5  their countries when the conflict is finished.

          6                 We're not asking for Colombians to

          7  give them a permanent residence. And we have a law,

          8  the Congress allow President Bush to sign an

          9  executive order and protect these nationals that are

         10  coming from Colombia, we have a law, we're asking

         11  President Bush to apply the law. We have already

         12  40,000 deaths and when your families or friends of

         13  yours are buying drugs here in the United States,

         14  you are, or some of you, or maybe your family or

         15  friends are sponsoring the funding the war in

         16  Colombia. So, these individuals, and talking in

         17  favor of the Guerrillas, or against the Guerrillas,

         18  or against or in favor of the paramilitaries is not

         19  our issue here. Our issue is how can we help these

         20  people that fortunately fled from Colombia and they

         21  are alive, because we have 40,000 that they could

         22  have endured.

         23                 So, specifically we can compare the

         24  situation of Colombia with other countries, and it

         25  will be not the appropriate way. We've been asking
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          2  several times why not give TPS for Venezuela why not

          3  give them TPS for Argentinians, of course we love to

          4  have TPS for everybody, but the law is there and

          5  it's clear specifically, and for Colombia it's

          6  suitable and what we're asking is to apply that law

          7  accordingly. And if we look into the Colombians

          8  coming to the United States, just for your

          9  information, only 30 percent of the Colombians come

         10  to the United States, other 70 percent are in

         11  Venezuela, Panama, Ecuador and some of them are also

         12  in Europe, Spain, so we have Colombians everywhere.

         13  So, the issue about fear of losing jobs in the City,

         14  it won't be an issue for the City Council here,

         15  because these Colombians will be able to pay taxes

         16  accordingly to the City which we need it,

         17  Councilman.

         18                 So, the important issue here is that

         19  I like to call the Chairman Monserrate to please cc

         20  the Resolution to the Secretary of State Colin

         21  Powell. He is the one who has the power basically to

         22  produce a recommendation on favor of TPS for

         23  Colombians.

         24                 And the other important issue

         25  throughout is we have about 80 to about 100,000
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          2  Colombians that will benefit from TPS. This

          3  estimates we gathered from the number of Colombians

          4  flying from Colombia and going back. So, we

          5  estimated, those numbers seems to be very accurate

          6  according to the records that we have.

          7                 So, and for the City of New York we

          8  believe that we may have about 20,000 Colombians

          9  that will get these benefits.

         10                 I'd like to introduce our friend, our

         11  attorney, William Salgado.

         12                 MR. SALGADO: Thank you, Mr. Nieto.

         13                 Chairman Serrano, Chairman

         14  Monserrate, members of the Committee, first of all,

         15  I'd like to thank you for your expressions of

         16  support for TPS who believe that it is a very

         17  important issue and that it is right and proper for

         18  it to be granted.

         19                 I am a little concerned about the

         20  remarks by Councilman Jennings, and while I did not

         21  come here intending to be a historian, I think that

         22  we do need to put a little bit of historical

         23  perspective on the issue so that we understand what

         24  is happening in Colombia right now.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: That's what
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          2  I wanted you to do. Thank you.

          3                 MR. SALGADO: Okay.

          4                 Now, I think that we're going to have

          5  to start with the Year of 1948. April 9th, 1948

          6  Jorges Gaitan was assassinated in the streets of

          7  Bogota. Jorges Gaitan was a very popular charismatic

          8  leader who championed the causes of lower classes,

          9  the lower class working people, the people who

         10  worked in the agricultural sector. After that time

         11  Colombia was essentially an agricultural nation,

         12  dependent almost to a large degree on agriculture.

         13  So, there was a great deal of lower classes who were

         14  oppressed by the upper classes.

         15                 Jorges Gaitan was the hero of the

         16  lower classes. He was assassinated, and on the date

         17  of his assassination, there were riots in the

         18  streets of Bogota, and within the span of 24 to 48

         19  hours, about 100,000 people were killed on the

         20  streets of Bogota and the City was basically in

         21  flames.

         22                 From then on there was a period of

         23  outright civil war, although not officially declared

         24  between the conservative party and the liberal

         25  party. The assassinated leader was from the liberal
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          2  party, and the president that took over after his

          3  death was from the conservative party, his name was

          4  Larido Gomez, and he undertook a reign of terror

          5  against liberals, literally assassinating hundreds

          6  of them.

          7                 From 1948 til 1953, Colombia was

          8  undergoing an outright civil war, a partisan civil

          9  war, akin to having the republicans shooting at each

         10  other with the democrats. This was a very real

         11  bloody civil war.

         12                 In 1953 there is a military coo, and

         13  the conservative president is ousted from power.

         14  There is a momentary respite in the balance that as

         15  the military dictator began to implement some

         16  repressive measures the violence commenced again.

         17  So, you have again partisan violence between 1953

         18  and 1957 when the military hunta (phonetic) ousts

         19  the military dictator, his name was Gustavo Rojas

         20  Pinilla.  So, he's ousted in 1957, and after 1957

         21  there is a military hunta ruling the country for

         22  about two years.

         23                 After two years there is a system

         24  that was called the "national front" was put in

         25  place whereby the liberals on the conservative share
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          2  equally the ministries the various government

          3  departments and they alternate the presidency, four

          4  years for the liberals, four years for the

          5  conservatives, and this goes on from 1960 til about

          6  1975.

          7                 Now, the power is concentrated on the

          8  two traditional parties leaving everybody else out

          9  of the picture. All the other groups that were not

         10  part of the traditional parties, such as the leftist

         11  groups, and other splinter groups, begin to organize

         12  into guerrilla movements, and that's where you have

         13  the birth of the modern type of guerrillas. So, you

         14  have a shift from the traditional war between the

         15  liberals and conservatives, and in 1959, with the

         16  advent of the Cuban revolution, there are modern

         17  guerrilla movements established in Colombia

         18  following the various communist lines that existed

         19  at that time, Mowis lines (phonetic), the Russian

         20  lines, there's about three types of communist groups

         21  that start up, and one of them is the FARC that is

         22  in place today, which is the main guerrilla group in

         23  existence today. They started mainly being funded by

         24  the Russians, and they grow as a military group over

         25  the years. And that brings us to about 1989. In
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          2  1989, you have the falling of the Berlin Wall, which

          3  causes funding from the communist countries to

          4  disappear from the Colombian scene. The guerrillas

          5  no longer get funds from China, from Russia, so they

          6  turn to other methods of financing their activities,

          7  and one of the things they turn to is extortion and

          8  narcotics trafficking. So, you have a convergence of

          9  factors.

         10                 In the prior years, narcotic

         11  trafficking was not a factor, but in the sixties,

         12  first with marijuana and then later with cocaine and

         13  more recently with heroine, narcotics begins to take

         14  a big role in what goes on in Colombia. Narcotics

         15  trafficking permeates everything. It permeates every

         16  aspect of society. It permeates the army, it

         17  permeates the guerrillas, it permeates the

         18  right-wing guerrilla groups. And a lot of the

         19  fighting that's going on today is basically a turf

         20  war between the left-wing guerrillas and the

         21  right-wing paramilitary groups and the army. So,

         22  today there is a natural political war going on

         23  between the left, the right and the regular army,

         24  and what happens, and Carlos cited the incident at

         25  Bogota.  This is the classical situation, although
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          2  that one was of major proportions and it made the

          3  news, but what happens in many of these towns is

          4  that first they get taken over by leftist

          5  guerrillas, and they weed out the suspected

          6  collaborators of the other groups. Then the

          7  right-wing paramilitary death squads, kick out the

          8  leftists, and they do their own cleansing, and then

          9  the army comes in to rescue this town from the

         10  right-wing paramilitary groups, and they do their

         11  own cleansing. So, that at each stage of the game

         12  the people of that town suffer deaths, casualties,

         13  they have no other option but to flee, and that's

         14  where many of these people are coming. That's the

         15  situation in Colombia. The civilian groups, the

         16  civilian people who are not engaged in the conflict

         17  are caught in the middle exactly in the manner

         18  described by Mr. Manzano. These are civilians that

         19  are dying and are not having any option but to flee.

         20                 In that particular town, it's a town

         21  basically in the middle of nowhere, but it is a

         22  crossroads for gun running, for narcotics running,

         23  for contraband, you name it, it's a no man's land,

         24  and that incident basically occurred because the

         25  right wings, the right wing paramilitary groups were
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          2  trying to take over the territory from the leftist

          3  guerrillas, and these two groups were at war with a

          4  total absence of the army. In that instance there

          5  was no army present at all. And the people had, the

          6  civilians had taken shelter in the church, hoping

          7  that being in a church they would be spared the

          8  conflict. But some intelligent guy in the FARC

          9  decided that right-wing members were hiding in the

         10  church, and they decided to bomb the church and

         11  basically they almost killed the entire population

         12  in that town. And that is a dramatic example of

         13  what's going on in Colombia all over the place.

         14  There is massive internal displacement in Colombia

         15  of proportions that are like what was happening in

         16  Kosovo. It's not making the front pages of the news,

         17  I don't know why, but there is a dramatic conflict

         18  going on in Colombia, massive internal displacement

         19  of population, and it's basically bubbling out to

         20  the neighboring countries, to Ecuador, to Venezuela,

         21  to the Dominican Republic. I just heard a report

         22  just a few days ago that within the last few years 3

         23  million Colombians have migrated to the Dominican

         24  Republic, okay, and the Dominican Republic recently

         25  stopped allowing Colombians to come in without a
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          2  visa, which was the history before. And that's what

          3  we're seeing in the U.S., is a lot of the people who

          4  are affected directly by this conflict, they are

          5  facing death, they are facing a war, and they have

          6  no alternative to leave.

          7                 Now, many of these Colombians have

          8  left and have entered the United States, as we have

          9  heard, on tourist visas, which are many of them

         10  expired, some people have crossed over the border

         11  through Mexico, some people have come in with fake

         12  passports, some people have come in with ostensibly

         13  visas to travel to third countries and they just

         14  jump out of the planes at the airport, when they're

         15  in transit to change planes from New York to

         16  wherever they're supposed to be going so there's

         17  various methods of getting in here.

         18                 Now, the fundamental problem is that

         19  they are here, they are fearful of returning to

         20  Colombia, and that we now have a large group of

         21  Colombians who are undocumented and who are unable

         22  to return safely to Colombia, and that's where TPS

         23  comes in. TPS comes in and it's provided for under

         24  INA, Immigration Nationality Act, Section 244, and

         25  we have heard some of its provisions, but basically
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          2  it's a mechanism designed to protect individuals who

          3  feel or with circumstances show that their lives

          4  would be threatened if they were forcibly returned

          5  to their country of birth or of residence.

          6                 Now, some people say, well, why don't

          7  you simply apply for asylum if the conditions are so

          8  drastic, and parenthetically I am an attorney and I

          9  am admitted to practice and I have a very extensive

         10  experience in the practice of immigration law. I am

         11  very familiar with some of these issues. If a person

         12  applies for asylum, the procedures require for the

         13  person to establish that that individual is

         14  particularly singled out for persecution by the

         15  government or by some state entity or

         16  state-sponsored entity. Obviously that's not

         17  happening in Colombia, and it's a very difficult

         18  practice for Colombians to obtain asylum.

         19                 Now, in the case that we just cited,

         20  all of those people were affected by that bomb, and

         21  probably not a single person in that church could

         22  probably have qualified for asylum, although their

         23  lives were in danger and many of them actually died.

         24                 So, the way the immigration system is

         25  set up right now, the appropriate mechanism is TPS.
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          2                 Now, TPS will grant protection, but I

          3  think there are benefits for the United States in

          4  granting TPS. I know there is a great deal of

          5  concern after 9/11 about people coming into the

          6  country and possibly being terrorists or criminals

          7  or things like that. Now, TPS would not be granted

          8  to any such individual. There is a mechanism in

          9  place whereby the applicants for this process would

         10  be fingerprinted. So, the government would have the

         11  benefit of background checks against these

         12  individuals or fingerprint checks would be able to

         13  establish whether they have criminal records,

         14  whether they are terrorists and obviously all those

         15  people who do not qualify would be denied and they

         16  would be subject to deportation.

         17                 Those people who do pass the

         18  screening and the background checks and the

         19  fingerprint checks, they would be granted TPS. So, I

         20  think there is a very positive result for the

         21  government. The government would in fact know who

         22  these people are, know where these people are, and

         23  would know who they are.

         24                 So, I think there is a great benefit

         25  for TPS to be granted just on that basis, would be
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          2  able to identify many people who are now living

          3  clandestinely and unknown to the authorities. So,

          4  automatically that's a positive step.

          5                 Obviously they would be able to

          6  remain in the United States, get work authorization

          7  and work legally in the United States and become

          8  contributors or taxpaying individuals.

          9                 So, I think all around it would be a

         10  very good thing for the Colombians to get the

         11  benefit of staying here and not facing death by

         12  returning to Colombia and the United States would

         13  get the benefit of their work, their tax

         14  contributions, and, I don't know, maybe down the

         15  line they may stay and become your citizens, and,

         16  you know, productive U.S. citizens.

         17                 So, I think what we have to do now,

         18  and some of the prior speakers mentioned it, is that

         19  TPS right now is bottled up in the State Department.

         20  The way it works is that the Attorney General would

         21  make a recommendation to the President to grant TPS,

         22  however, the Attorney General will not make that

         23  recommendation until he gets an advisory opinion

         24  from the Department of State.

         25                 The Department of State, and we have
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          2  had several visits to Washington, and we have sat

          3  down and spoken with Department of State officials

          4  on this issue, and basically what has become clear

          5  to us is that there are two factions within the

          6  Department of State, one faction wishes to grant

          7  TPS, and the other faction does not wish to grant

          8  TPS because they believe essentially it's some

          9  economic, that Colombian migration is economic in

         10  nature, which obviously would disagree with, but

         11  since there are two factions internally that cannot

         12  agree with each other, they basically bury their

         13  head in the sand and take no decision (sic), and

         14  that's the current stance. The Department of State

         15  has not denied TPS, but inaction is de facto denying

         16  TPS by not deciding. I think they're carrying

         17  themselves both ways. Number one, they're not

         18  denying it, so they're saying we're not denying it;

         19  and number two, they're not granting it, and they're

         20  saying we're studying it, but by not granting it

         21  they're denying it.

         22                 So, we urge the City Council,

         23  obviously, to communicate with Secretary of State

         24  Powell and with the President of the United States

         25  and urge them to grant TPS for Colombians for all
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          2  the reasons that I have just spelled out.

          3                 MR. NIETO: I also brought some real

          4  testimonies for you to hear today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You have

          6  people --

          7                 MR. SALGADO: We have people who have

          8  actually been affected by violence who are here to

          9  testify of their personal experience.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay, we're

         11  going to go ahead and go through our list first, and

         12  then we're going to call them up. And I'd like to

         13  thank you, especially Mr. Salgado, for your

         14  historical perspective, which I think sheds a little

         15  more light towards the issue.

         16                 So, thank you both for testifying.

         17                 I want to call up next Mercedes Cano

         18  from Centro Communitario.

         19                 MR. SALGADO: Thank you.

         20                 MR. NIETO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: While the next

         23  witness comes up, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to

         24  recognize the presence of Council Member Miguel

         25  Martinez, who has joined us from the great Borough
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          2  of Manhattan. Thank you, Mr. Martinez.

          3                 MS. CANO: Mr. Chairman, good

          4  afternoon to all the Committee, members of the

          5  Council. We just wanted the cameras to be off

          6  because this is a very sensitive issue and the

          7  people that I brought here today, they will be

          8  giving you a very brief statement of their

          9  experience in Colombia, so that's why I had asked

         10  the cameras to be down.

         11                 My name is Mercedes Cano. I was born

         12  in Colombia, and I came to the United States 30

         13  years ago.

         14                 I came here and I was undocumented

         15  for about ten, 11 years. Then I finally got a job as

         16  a cab driver, I used to drive in the City of New

         17  York. Finally I was able to go to school and I

         18  became an attorney.

         19                 I formed a not-for-profit

         20  organization in Jackson Heights, Queens. Our mission

         21  is to educate and inform the Hispanic immigrants in

         22  Queens of New York.

         23                 In 1999 we took two buses full of our

         24  members to Washington in support of a national

         25  amnesty. There we met a great amount of people who
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          2  were coming from Colombia and who were seeking

          3  asylum.

          4                 A lot of the people that we

          5  interviewed, like my colleague, Mr. Salgado had

          6  said, could not qualify for a political asylum

          7  because of the different reasons that Mr. Salgado

          8  explained.

          9                 Nevertheless, since 1999, we had seen

         10  entire families with their children come to the

         11  United States, especially to New York, and stay in

         12  New York, regardless of the consequences of staying

         13  undocumented.

         14                 As I was listening to the testimony

         15  that some of the people had presented here, I was

         16  wondering, how is it possible that if the government

         17  of Colombia is doing their job, protecting our

         18  people, how is it possible that people are being

         19  killed, persecuted, murder, and the government is

         20  not doing what they're supposed to do.

         21                 I had asked some of my colleagues in

         22  Colombia if the government in Colombia is doing

         23  their job? Are they really protecting Colombians?

         24  And the answer have been no.

         25                 If you read the country conditions
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          2  that the Department of the State brought up at the

          3  beginning of this year, just read the first six

          4  pages of the country conditions under the Department

          5  of State, and it's very clear. It basically says the

          6  government of Colombia is not doing their job. The

          7  military in Colombia is collaborating with the

          8  paramilitaries, and the violence is rampant.

          9  Everybody could be a victim, everybody could be

         10  kidnapped. The government of Colombia is not doing

         11  their job.

         12                 I listen to people saying, like

         13  Governor Pataki has sent letters, everybody has some

         14  letters to the Department of Justice saying, please,

         15  grant TPS to Colombians, and I wonder why is it that

         16  we're not getting TPS? Everybody else in the

         17  government seems to be behind us. We need TPS. We

         18  qualify for TPS. I think that the representative for

         19  the Senator Hillary Clinton said it, we do qualify

         20  for TPS, so why is it that we're not getting TPS?

         21                 Well, I'm pretty sure that you're

         22  aware that millions of dollars have been channeled

         23  to Colombia. Millions of dollars.

         24                 You know, the Department of Justice,

         25  and the Bush Administration, would be highly
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          2  compromised to grant TPS to Colombians when they're

          3  channeling billions of dollars to Colombia. I think

          4  that that's the reason. I don't think there's

          5  anything else.

          6                 Anyway, I think I sort of like went a

          7  little bit away from what I was going to say today.

          8                 I have invited some people who have

          9  recently arrived from Colombia, who have lived there

         10  in Colombia for awhile, and who were able to run

         11  away from Colombia, and make it here alive, people

         12  who had plenty of reasons to fear for their lives,

         13  who went to the government for protection, and the

         14  government said, sorry, there's nothing we can do,

         15  who came to the United States, applied for political

         16  asylum and were denied political asylum, some of

         17  them.

         18                 I'm going to quickly introduce to you

         19  a social worker, a young lady who is from Colombia.

         20  She was employed as a local anti-drug agent.

         21                 She was constantly threatened by the

         22  paramilitary forces. Ultimately, she was terrorized,

         23  sexually assaulted, and forced to either leave

         24  Colombia within 24 hours or be killed.

         25                 She told us at the center, that the
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          2  reason for this treatment was because she refused to

          3  cover up the corruption which existed in government

          4  employment.

          5                 While working with a youth project,

          6  which supposedly funded job training and

          7  recreational activities for the youth, she was

          8  required to submit written reports of our field work

          9  in her reports. She was truthful and consistently

         10  stated that no such programs existed. She also

         11  exposed drug houses and recruited youth members and

         12  trained them to transfer drugs. This was what these

         13  houses were actually doing.

         14                 The threatening phone calls, that's

         15  how it starts in Colombia. For example, if I would

         16  be doing what I'm doing here, I will be already be

         17  probably either dead or have given an ultimatum to

         18  leave the country.

         19                 I don't think I could be what I am

         20  here today in the United States. And just the

         21  thought of thinking that I can't even go to the

         22  police to ask for help, or the government, I can't

         23  even go there, because they will not protect me.

         24                 This young lady has told us that the

         25  threatening phone calls began shortly after she
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          2  began writing these reports, and because she

          3  continued her mission of working with youth,

          4  organizing activities for them, and writing about

          5  the atrocities she discovered, she almost lost her

          6  life.

          7                 One evening on her way home from

          8  work, her bus was stopped, masked men entered the

          9  bus, and proceeded to attack her, while everybody

         10  was looking. She was injured, sexually assaulted,

         11  her life was threatened, and her briefcase, which

         12  she had all her reports, was stolen. Nobody in the

         13  bus dared to stop them.

         14                 A few months later she kept on

         15  getting the phone calls and she left Colombia. They

         16  told her, you have 24 hours to leave Colombia.

         17                 She came to the United States and

         18  applied for asylum. And the INS officer told her

         19  that she did not qualify, because she didn't have

         20  enough proofs, and he went into detail.

         21                 I just want her to tell you in very

         22  few words, and this is very hard for her, I want you

         23  to understand that this situation, when you live

         24  that in person, they really make you very, very

         25  nervous, and it's a very, very sticky subject for
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          2  the person to speak.

          3                 I'm just going to ask her to tell you

          4  why would TPS help her, and how she felt when she

          5  was in Colombia.

          6                 Did she felt (sic) protected by the

          7  government?

          8                 PARTICIPANT: (not identified for the

          9  record.) Hi. I speak a little English. I just want

         10  to say thank you very much for just listening to me

         11  today. It's very hard for me, because I was having a

         12  life in Colombia and I did something good, somebody

         13  kill me, you understand? Somebody stole my dignity,

         14  and I don't know why this thing happened to me. I

         15  have lived here for three years and I was asking for

         16  help. And it's very hard, when you come from there,

         17  and you don't speak English, you don't know the

         18  culture, you don't know the country, and you have

         19  this problem inside you and you cannot solve with

         20  anybody because you don't know anybody. I was with

         21  my family, try to find help, but we don't believe in

         22  our police. Why they call and say to me that maybe I

         23  was a prostitute, say I was doing something wrong

         24  and that's why this happen to me. I was working in

         25  my community, I was working hard in my university
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          2  and somebody kill everything. I needed to come here

          3  in this country, but it's still painful, I'm still

          4  afraid. I can't explain it. I can't go outside, I

          5  can't leave because I think they may follow me here.

          6  I can't work sometimes because I think they're going

          7  to come again. I can't go inside the bath because

          8  I'm afraid they're going to come again. I don't know

          9  why, what I did wrong? I'm afraid to write reports.

         10  They wanted to don't say the truth to the job

         11  people, say please don't do this, please do this. I

         12  still don't know. I only think about TPS, I didn't

         13  know what it is, and the only thing that I feel this

         14  TPS can give me is to recover my dignity. I didn't

         15  do anything wrong in my country, because I love my

         16  country, and I dream that one day we're going to

         17  have peace there. Because I don't know what it is.

         18  I'm 30 years old, and nobody knows and nobody want

         19  to help. Nobody want to help. Nobody wanted to help

         20  on the bus. Nobody. Everybody was giving me their

         21  back because they also were afraid to die. And I

         22  don't understand what it is, why they don't just

         23  give the benefit to people like me. We didn't come

         24  here to looking for money, for dollars, no. I was

         25  running for my life there. I come from a big family,
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          2  and all there are professional and they are working

          3  for the community, but our lives changed, not only

          4  my life, my family, and I don't talk with them

          5  because we are afraid that somebody going to listen

          6  and going to do something wrong to them, because, I

          7  don't know. I never do anything wrong in my country,

          8  never. I was going to my school, my university. I

          9  need somebody who going to ask me, I didn't do

         10  anything wrong because I feel like criminal here. I

         11  feel I needed to go get out from Colombia because I

         12  did something wrong, but it wasn't wrong what I did.

         13  My life, something that I was believing, I was

         14  believing I could bring these poor people something

         15  they don't have, an opportunity like I was having,

         16  because I couldn't go to college, to university.

         17                 I don't know, I feel the TPS can

         18  recognize a little of my dignity, because I feel

         19  that I died, somebody killed me there and I needed

         20  to come here, but I feel that not me, I'm another

         21  person.

         22                 MS. CANO: Thank you. Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 This is very hard.

         25                 I'm going to tell you also a short
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          2  story of a human rights activist who was able to

          3  leave Colombia alive.

          4                 She worked in 1980s with the human

          5  rights groups. Her job consisted of visiting

          6  political prisoners. She was appointed to identify

          7  later on the people that were found dead. Most of

          8  those people that she was identifying were human

          9  right workers, community organizers. Little by

         10  little she acquired experience and she became

         11  somebody in a not-for-profit organization. Then, as

         12  the situation increased and became very dangerous,

         13  she started working with Amnesty International,

         14  getting these human right workers out of Colombia to

         15  Europe, anywhere in Europe, Spain, England, and then

         16  she saw little by little her friends disappear. She

         17  said that they were found, the friends, in the

         18  rivers, in the morgues, in the country house. Then

         19  she says all kinds of people started disappearing,

         20  workers, reporters, farmers, priests, students,

         21  professors, lawyers, doctors, home-makers, children.

         22  She said, it became a chaotic situation, everybody

         23  was disappearing. We were just finding them dead on

         24  the street.

         25                 She tells me that the situation
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          2  became so difficult that her mother mortgaged the

          3  house and begged her to leave Colombia. And she did.

          4  That's the reason why she's still alive here today.

          5  And she work with us, and she brings a lot of

          6  empathy, understanding and support for people like

          7  our friend here who comes to the center.

          8                 She's very short, she's going to tell

          9  you how she feels about what's going on in Colombia,

         10  why (sic) has changed lately, and why TPS will be a

         11  solution for awhile.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: We're going

         13  to ask for the testimony to be extremely short. We

         14  have two other witnesses and then we're going to

         15  have to call a vote.

         16                 MS. CANO: Yes, very short.

         17                 I'm going to translate, too, so I'll

         18  make it short. This is very hard. That's why it

         19  takes them awhile to really start.

         20                 Okay, she can't talk, it's just too

         21  emotional, so we're just going to go on.

         22                 Our last person that we have here, he

         23  was just taxi driver, basically somebody who drives

         24  a cab in Colombia. And one night he happened to

         25  witness the assassination of his stepfather. An
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          2  armed group came to the house, killed the

          3  stepfather, and the armed group told him "if you

          4  ever say anything about what you saw, we will kill

          5  you." So, him and his family decided they weren't

          6  going to say anything.

          7                 The police came to take the report,

          8  they didn't say anything. They figured they have

          9  children, they have wives, he didn't want to say

         10  anything, so he didn't say anything.

         11                 As the days went by, every time he

         12  encountered this armed group, or people that

         13  belonged to this armed group in the streets, he was

         14  threatened. Constantly threatened, constantly

         15  getting phone calls.

         16                 Finally, 11 months after he decided

         17  he couldn't take it anymore. The family got up some

         18  money and he left Colombia. He came to the United

         19  States. He asked for political asylum, he was

         20  denied. He's in the United States for awhile. We had

         21  met him awhile ago, and he's going to tell us very

         22  short why.

         23                 I'm going to do the translation, why

         24  he thinks that TPS would help him and his family in

         25  Colombia.
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          2                 I'm just asking him why would it

          3  help.

          4                 PARTICIPANT: (Through the

          5  Interpreter.) It would help me a lot to be at ease,

          6  for tranquility. Because if I have TPS, they will

          7  not arrest me and send me back to Colombia, where I

          8  am sure that I will be killed.

          9                 I'm asking you, please, help us with

         10  the TPS for Colombians. For those Colombians that

         11  have left, flee Colombia, because we've been

         12  threatened to be killed.

         13                 To have to abandon your family, your

         14  mother, your brother, in the middle of the night to

         15  make a decision that you have to leave all your

         16  loved ones because you're afraid that you're going

         17  to get killed, for just the fact that I was a

         18  witness to a murder, because the paramilitaries were

         19  the one who killed.

         20                 MS. CANO: Let me ask you something.

         21  (In Spanish) Didn't you go to the police to ask for

         22  help?

         23                 PARTICIPANT: (Through the

         24  Interpreter) Yes.

         25                 MS. CANO: (In Spanish) What happened?
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          2                 PARTICIPANT: (Through the

          3  interpreter.) When the assassination took place, we

          4  called the police. They took about an hour to

          5  arrive. We had asked them to please help us to

          6  capture these assassins. They told us they were

          7  going to build like sort of stops at the beginning

          8  and at the exit of the town, but they never did.

          9                 After we had told them much later on

         10  who were the people that did this, I personally

         11  observed those people talking to the police like it

         12  was nothing.

         13                 You can't be in peace in Colombia.

         14  You can't trust anybody in Colombia. That's why I

         15  run.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 If there's any questions?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: No questions.

         19  We have some other witnesses.

         20                 MS. CANO: Okay, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         22  very much. (Speaking in Spanish.) Thank you.

         23                 MS. CANO: Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: We're going

         25  to call two more panels. The next person
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          2  representing the Central Labor Council's Commission

          3  on the Dignity of Immigrants, Jose Peralta.

          4                 MR. PERALTA: Good afternoon. I would

          5  like to take this opportunity to thank the members

          6  of the City Council, both Chairs Serrano and

          7  Monserrate, for allowing me to say a few words on

          8  such an important hearing.

          9                 My name is Jose Peralta, and I'm the

         10  Director of the Commission on the Dignity for

         11  Immigrants at the New York City Central Labor

         12  Council, which is an organization which represents

         13  1.5 million working men and women in the City of New

         14  York.

         15                 The Commission is a partnership of

         16  the Archdioceses of New York, the New York City

         17  Central Labor Council, and many leading immigrant

         18  advocate groups that defend immigrants on the

         19  federal, state and local level.

         20                 Today I'm here to advocate for

         21  Colombian immigrants who are merely trying to get

         22  their fair share of what should be an obvious

         23  necessity, TPS, Temporary Protected Status.

         24                 The CLC and myself have been involved

         25  in this movement since early on, as is evident of
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          2  our August 10th, 2001 letter that we have written to

          3  President Bush on his behalf.

          4                 This issue is a simple matter of

          5  equity and fair play. The U.S. government instituted

          6  this program precisely for countries in Colombia's

          7  situation, beset by turmoil and poverty. While we

          8  are at it, let's consider the other countries that

          9  have benefitted from this status, and have repeated

         10  the rewards, like Angola, Barundi, El Salvador,

         11  Honduras, Nicaragua, Somalia, and many others. The

         12  situation in those countries were no worse than that

         13  of the chaos that exists today in Colombia. The

         14  threat of violence and the shattered economy make

         15  TPS a clear and compelling choice for Colombia.

         16                 The recent history of asylum requests

         17  demonstrates this point as well. Contrary to what

         18  Mr. Sargado has said, I believe that asylum does

         19  make the point, although it's not the way to go, due

         20  to the restrictions of asylum, I believe it does

         21  make the point. Because in the year 2000 about 3,400

         22  Colombians applied for asylum and within a period of

         23  a year in 2001 the number more than doubled to

         24  7,300.

         25                 Coupled with an increase in approval
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          2  rates from an 11 percent rate to a 65 percent rate,

          3  this sends a clear message that Colombians need

          4  protection.

          5                 The problem that exists is that

          6  without TPS, thousands of Colombians must resort to

          7  go beyond the law, as it was recently discovered,

          8  that an estimated 20,000 undocumented Colombians

          9  reside in Queens alone, who knows how many more are

         10  undocumented, simply because they needed to escape

         11  the horrible situation in their country.

         12                 I implore you, members of the City

         13  Council, listen to their cry. If not from the

         14  Colombian government, in which the Colombian foreign

         15  minister in 2001 asked the U.S. government to grant

         16  TPS, then from the Colombians themselves who are

         17  here testifying, and others that have been fighting

         18  the good fight, they, themselves, are living through

         19  this day-to-day ordeal, and simply want to find a

         20  safe haven where they can do what we Americans take

         21  for granted on a day-to-day basis in a democratic

         22  society.

         23                 We must remember that TPS for

         24  Colombians would benefit the U.S., as well.

         25                 Many applicants bring high skills and
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          2  experience that would enable them to make

          3  significant contributions to the American economy.

          4                 So, in closing, as the Director of

          5  the Commission on the Dignity of Immigrants and as a

          6  Dominican American brother, I urge the City Council

          7  to do all it can to lobby congress so that our

          8  Colombian brothers and sisters get a fair share of

          9  equity and TPS is granted.

         10                 Thank you for your time, and

         11  remember, that if we keep our eyes on the prize, Si

         12  se Puede, Yes we can, and we can get TPS for

         13  Colombians.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Peralta.

         17                 At this point I'm going to call up

         18  the rest of the witnesses to be on the panel.

         19                 Mercedes Humanis (phonetic). Is she

         20  here? She is not here.

         21                 Jesius Pachias, and Ernesto Pachung

         22  (phonetic) Is that the same person?

         23                 PARTICIPANT: (Not identified for the

         24  record.) Mr. Pachias has asked me to translate for

         25  him.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Okay. And I ask

          3  that time is of the essence, if we can please

          4  summarize the testimony, because we would, and the

          5  Committee would like to vote on the final. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Just before

          8  he speaks, was there any other witness? No, okay.

          9                 Okay, go forward.

         10                 MR. PACHIAS: (Through the

         11  interpreter.) Thank you very much, and greeting to

         12  everyone here.

         13                 I am here today to collaborate for

         14  this cause, and I aim to tell about my testimony.

         15                 My name is Jesius Pachias. I am 51

         16  years old, and I studied at the National University

         17  in Bogota, Colombia. I went on to work for Bolivar,

         18  for the state. I participated in various programs,

         19  Conservation of the Wildlife, jointly with the

         20  Interior Department of the United States, programs

         21  sponsored by the Fishing Wildlife. I dedicated

         22  myself to the cultivation of reptiles in the

         23  Department of the State of Bolivar.

         24                 In the 1990s I placed -- I moved the

         25  reptiles to the State in Colombia, which is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            92

          1  CULTURAL AFFAIRS AND CIVIL RIGHTS

          2  Bolivar.  I had a small company that managed, or had

          3  25 employees. It exported live reptiles to the

          4  cities in Miami and Europe. The 37th front that

          5  operates in the Colombian Caribbean, initiated

          6  pressure against me, asking for money for their

          7  cause. I negated any money to them and on May 17th

          8  they came to my farm and detonated arms and killed

          9  four individuals. They didn't kill me due to things

         10  of destiny, and at that moment I was not at that

         11  farm.

         12                 They pressured and they also tried to

         13  kill my children in the City of Cartagena, and at

         14  that point we had to flee to go to Miami.

         15                 The children, they came to the United

         16  States but -- in his voice -- I stayed behind

         17  looking for proof of all the evidence. I remained

         18  behind looking for all the evidence that could prove

         19  the people who died on that day.

         20                 February of this year I received an

         21  appointment and I was also approved for asylum.

         22  Thanks to all the proofs that I was able to provide

         23  to the Institute of Naturalization.

         24                 The companies, the places that I had

         25  where the reptiles were growing were in the City of
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          2  Cartagena, and when the assassinations of my

          3  employees occurred, newspapers or the media came

          4  very quickly. There is evidence from the media, from

          5  the principal or the main newspapers of the country,

          6  all of this evidence helped to prove my case to the

          7  Immigration and Naturalization Service.

          8                 There are many Colombians that have

          9  to leave without being able to gather the

         10  appropriate information to prove their case of all

         11  the things that have occurred. For this reason they

         12  have not been able to process completely their

         13  asylum application.

         14                 What happened to me happens to many

         15  other Colombians. We hope to touch on everyone's

         16  sensibilities so that they know of those who have in

         17  their hands the power to approve TPS for Colombians

         18  and we need it very much.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Thank you. At

         23  this time I would like to call for the conclusion of

         24  our vote.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Serrano.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jennings.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Mr.

          5  Chairman, I would like to be excused to explain my

          6  vote.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: I feel this

          9  is compelling testimony. I am well convinced that

         10  the situation that is occurring in Colombia is

         11  critical. I'm glad that the testimonies that came,

         12  in the last few testimonies it was much more clear,

         13  so I well understand the issue.

         14                 I would like to, however, just

         15  encourage the people of Colombia, I know that they

         16  love their country, and as many testimonies, of the

         17  testimonies of those witnesses, there are doctors,

         18  lawyers, teachers, professionals, business persons,

         19  upper middle class people are fleeing the country

         20  because they feel it's not safe, and I would just

         21  like to encourage them that they should not run away

         22  from their country and abandon their country and let

         23  the criminals of the country and the guerrillas,

         24  surrender their country to the guerrillas, but they

         25  should one day return and protect and stand up and
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          2  fight for their country that they love, that I know

          3  they love so dearly. And I would like to encourage

          4  the members of the Committee that in the future,

          5  that maybe we could draft legislation to make a

          6  resolution that the United States government should

          7  put more funding into the enforcement and get more

          8  resources to Colombia to help rid themselves of

          9  these criminals. I think internally when we see

         10  what's going on with war and terror, what I heard

         11  today in this Chambers is what I consider real

         12  terror, and that's what the real war on terror

         13  should be focused on, on situations like this. I

         14  would like to vote aye.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Boyland.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Davis.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Five in the

         23  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions,

         24  the item is adopted. Please sign the Committee

         25  report.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Thank you very

          3  much. Thank you to all who gave testimony. Also

          4  congratulations to Chairman Hiram Monserrate for a

          5  very successful resolution. I thank you for it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          7  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. And I thank all of

          8  the members of the Committee, and invite you all to

          9  join us in our celebration of Colombian independence

         10  in the Chambers.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 5:45 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 18th day of July 2002.
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             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            98

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

